(Authoritative English text of the HP Government Notification No. HFW-B(B)1-2/2001 dated 20/12/2012 (as required under article 348(3) of the Constitution of India), Department of Health and Family welfare Himachal Pradesh

> Government of Himachal Pradesh Health and Family Welfare Department

No. HFW-B(B)1-10/2012

20th December, 2012

Notification

In exercise of the powers conferred by section 54 of The Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act 2010 of the Central Government, the Governor of Himachal Pradesh is pleased to make the following rules, namely:-

Rules

Part-I

Preliminary-

1. Short title and	(i). These rules may be called the Himachal Pradesh Clinical
commencement -1	Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Rules, 2012
	(ii). These rules extend to the whole of the state of <u>Himachal</u>
	<u>Pradesh</u> and are applicable to all the Clinical Establishments in the
	State of <u>Himachal Pradesh</u>
	(iii). These Rules shall come into force on the date of their
	publication in the Himachal Pradesh State Government Official
	Gazette.
	(iv). The Rules shall be applicable to various categories of Clinical
	Establishments in a phased manner, as may be notified from time to
	time.
Definition-2	2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires:-
	(a) "authority" means the district registering authority set up under section10;
	(b) "certificate " means certificate of registration issued under section30;
	© "clinical establishment " means-
	(i) a hospital, maternity home, nursing home, dispensary, clinic,
	sanatorium or an institution by whatever name called that
	offers services, facilities requiring diagnosis, treatment or care
	for illness, injury deformity, abnormality or pregnancy in an
	recognized system of medicine established and administered for
	maintained by any person or body of persons, whether

incorporated or not; or

(ii) a place established as an independent entity of part of an establishment referred to in sub- clause (i) in connection with the diagnosis or treatment of diseases where pathological , bacteriological genetic radiological chemical biological investigations or other diagnostic or investigative services with the aid of laboratory or other medical equipment are usually carried on, established and administered or maintained by any person or body of persons, whether incorporated or not,

And shall include a clinical establishment owned, controlled or managed by-

- (a) the Government or a department of the Government;
- (b) a trust, whether public or private;
- (c) a corporation (including a society) registered under a Central, Provincial or State Act, whether or not owned by the Government;
- (d) a local authority; and
- (e) a single doctor,

But does not include the clinical establishment owned controlled or managed by the Armed Forces.

(d) "emergency medical condition" means a medical condition manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity (including severe pain) of such a nature that the absence of immediate medical attention could reasonably be expected to result in-

- (i) placing the health of the individual or with respect to a pregnant women the health of the woman or her unborn child, in serious jeopardy; or
- (ii) serious impairment to bodily functions ;
- (iii) serious dysfunction of any organ or part of a body.
- (e) "National Council " means the National Council for clinical establishments established under section3;
- (f) "Notification "means a notification published in the Official Gazette;
- (g) "prescribed" means prescribed by rules made under this Act by the

	Central Government or as the case may be , the State Government;
	(h) "Recognized" system of medicine " means Allopathy , Yoga ,
	Naturopathy, Ayurveda , Homoeopathy , Siddha and Unani System
	of medicines or any other system of medicine as may be recognized
	by the Central Government;
	(i) "register" means the register maintained by the authority, State
	Government and the Central Government under sections 37,38 and
	39 respectively of this Act containing the number of clinical
	establishment registered;
	(j) "registration" means to register under section 11 and the expression
	registration or registered shall be construed accordingly;
	(k) "rules " means rules made under this Act;
	(I) "Schedule " means the Schedule appended to this Act;
	(m) "standards " means the conditions that the Central Government may
	prescribe under section 12 for the registration of clinical
	establishment;
	(n) "State Government", in relation to a Union territory, means the
	Administrator thereof appointed under article 239 of the Constitution
	and
	(o) "to stabilize (with its grammatical variations and cognate
	expressions)" means with respect to an emergency medical condition
	specified in clause (d) to provide such medical treatment of the
	condition as may be necessary to assure, within reasonable medical
	probability, that no material deterioration of the condition is likely to
	result from or occur during the transfer of the individual from a
	clinical establishment.
Establishment of	(1). The State Government shall by notification constitute State
State Council for	Council for Clinical Establishments, as the case may be.
Clinical	
Establishments-3	
Functions of the State	1. The Slate Council shall perform the following functions,
Council-4	namely:—
	(a) compiling and updating the State Registers of clinical
	establishment;

	. (b) sending quarterly returns for updating the National
	. Register (including in the digital format);
	. ©. representing the State in the National Council;
	. (d). hearing of appeals against the orders of the authority;
	(e). publication on annual basis , of a report on the state of
	implementation of standards in the State;
	. (f). monitor the implementation of the provisions of the Act
	and rules in the State;
	(g). recommend to the Government, any modifications
	required in the rules in accordance with changes in
	technology or social conditions;
	(h). perform any other function as may be outlined by
	the National council of Clinical Establishments
	(i). Any other function as may be prescribed by the Central
	Government.
Sub-Committees-5	1. (i) The State Council may at any time constitute a sub-
	committee consisting of any number of its member, for such period,
	not exceeding two years, for the consideration of particular matters,
	at the request of the National Council and / or as determined by the
	Central Government.
	(ii) A motion for the appointment of a sub-committee shall
	define the functions of the subcommittee, number of the member to
	be appointed thereon and timeline for completion of tasks. The
	Chairman of every such committee shall be appointed by the State
	Council at the time of the appointment of the committee.
	(iii) Any decisions taken by the sub-committee/s shall be
	placed before the State Council at its next meeting for its
	consideration and approval.
Conduct of Business-6	1. Every meeting of the State Council shall be presided over by the
	Chairperson
Time & Place for	1. The meetings of the State Council shall ordinarily be held at State
Meetings of the State /	Capital on such dates as may be fixed by the State Council. The State
Union Territory	shall meet every six months.
Council-7	
Notice of Meeting-8	1. Notice of every meeting other than a special meeting shall be
	dispatched by the Member Secretary of District Registering
L	

	Anthonites to each member of the Council and loss than 15 down
	Authority to each member of the Council not less than 15 days
	before the date of the meeting.
Quorum, Call for	1. (i) One - third of the total number of members of the State Council
Meeting, Minutes of	shall form a quorum and all actions of the Council shall be decided
Meetings9	by a majority of the members present and voting.
	(ii) The notice and agenda of every such meeting of the State
	Council shall ordinarily be given 15 days before the meeting by the
	Member Secretary of the Council.
	(iii) The proceedings of the meetings of the Council shall be
	preserved in the form of minutes which shall be authenticated after
	confirmation by the signature of the Chairperson. The decisions
	taken therein shall be given effect to.
Registration and	1. (i) A member desiring to resign his seat on the State Council
Filling of Casual	shall send his resignation in writing to the Chairperson and every
Vacancies10	such resignation shall take effect from the date mentioned by him in
	this behalf or in case no such date is mentioned, from the date of the
	receipt of his letter by the Chairperson after confirmation from the
	member concerned about his resignation.
	(ii) When a casual vacancy occurs by reason of death,
	resignation or otherwise of a member, a report shall be made
	forthwith by the Chairperson to the State Government which shall
	take steps to have the vacancies filled by nomination or election, as
	the case may be.
Finance and	1. The Accounts of the Council shall be audited annually by a
Accounts-11	Chartered Accountant, who is to be appointed with the prior approval
	of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. Any expenditure
	incurred in connection with such audit shall be payable by the
	Council.
The District	1. The State Government shall, by notification under Section
Registering Authority	10 of the Act and in accordance with the rules framed by Central
Establishment of	Government in this behalf set up an authority to be called the District
District Registering	Registering Authority for each district for registration of clinical
Authority-12	establishments.
Functions of the	The District Registering Authority will function as under :-
<u> </u>	

District Registering	(a). to grant, renew, suspend or cancel registration of any clinical
Authority-13	establishments
	(b). to enforce compliance of the provisions and rules of the
	Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act
	2010
	©. to investigate complaints of breach of the provisions of this
	Act or the rules made there under and take immediate action;
	(d). to prepare and submit on quarterly basis report containing
	details related to number and nature of provisional and
	permanent registration certificates issued; including those
	cancelled, suspended or rejected to the State Council;
	(e). to report to the State Council on a quarterly basis on action
	taken against non-registered clinical establishments running
	operations in violation of the Act ;
	(f). perform any other function as may be prescribed by the
	Central Government and or the State Government from time
	to time;
Time and Place of	
and Preparation of	
Business for	The meetings of the District Registering Authority shall be
Meetings of the	held monthly at a stipulated date and time.
District Registering	
Authority-14	
Conduct of Durings	Evenu meeting of the District Desistaring Authority shall be
Conduct of Business-	Every meeting of the District Registering Authority shall be
15	presided over by the Chairperson.
Notice of Meeting-16	Notice of every meeting other than a special meeting shall be
	dispatched by the convener to each member not less than 15 days
	before the date of the meeting.
Quorum, Minutes-	(i) One - third of the total number of members of the District
17	Registering Authority shall form a quorum and all actions of the
	Authority shall be decided by a majority of the members present and
	voting.
	(ii) The proceedings of the meetings of the District Registering
	Authority shall be preserved in the form of minutes which shall be
	authenticated after confirmation by the signature of the Chairperson.

	The decisions taken therein shall be given effect to subject to their
	being consistent with the provisions of the Act.
	(iii) The proceeding of annual meeting of District Registering
	Authority be submitted to the State Council.
Resignation and	(i) If a causal-vacancy occurs in the office of any other members,
filling of casual	whether by reason of death, resignation or inability to discharge,
vacancies-18	functions owing to illness or any other incapacity, such vacancy shall
	be filled by the District Collector by making a fresh appointment and
	the member so appointed shall hold office for the remaining term of
	office of the person in whose places/he is so appointed.
Registration of	1 (i) The applicant shall apply to the District Registration Authority
Clinical	for provisional registration, either in person, or by post or through
Establishments	web based online facility with the necessary information as per SG1-
Application for	A Form under Section 14 (1) and 14 (3) of the Act
Registration-19	(ii) Once the process for permanent registration is started by the
	State, the clinical establishments shall apply to the District
	Registration Authority for permanent registration, in person, or by
	post or through web based online facility with the necessary
	information filled and with evidence of having met the requirements
	of minimum standards and personnel for different categories of
	Clinical Establishments in a form and format that may be prescribed
	by the National Council / State Government under Section 24 and 25
	of the Act
	(iii) If an establishment is offering services in more than one
	category as specified under the Clinical Establishments (Registration
	and Regulation) Rules (Central Government), 2010, the establishment
	will need to apply for a separate provisional or permanent registration
	for each category of establishment under Section 14 (I) and Section
	30 of the Act. However, if a laboratory or diagnostic center is a part
	of an establishment providing out patient / inpatient care, no separate
	registration will be required.
	registration will be required.
Acknowledgeme	(i) The Registration Authority, or any person in his office authorized
nt of	in this behalf, shall, acknowledge receipt of the application for
Application-20	permanent registration, in the acknowledgment slip provided as per
	SG2 Annexe immediately, if delivered at the office of the authority,
	or not later than the next working day if received by post and by
	online acknowledgement to be generated automatically by the
	system.
	-

Grant of Registration-	(i) The authority shall not undertake any enquiry prior to the grant of
21	provisional registration and shall within a period of ten days from the
	date of receipt of such application, grant to the applicant a certificate
	of provisional registration containing particulars and information as
	per SG3 Annexe either by post or electronically under Section 15,
	read with Section 17 of the Act.
Certificate of	1. (i) The District Registering Authority shall grant the applicant a
registration-22	certificate of permanent registration as per SG4 Annexure either by
	post or electronically after satisfying itself that the applicant has
	complied with all the requirements and criteria, including provision
	of minimum standards and personnel required to run the clinical
	establishment under Sections 28 and 30 of the Act
	(ii) In case of permanent registration, under Section 29 of the Act,
	the authority shall pass an order within 1/2 months -
	(a) allowing the application for permanent registration; or
	(b) disallowing the application:;
	Provided that the authority shall record its justifications and
	reasons, if it disallows an application, for permanent registration.
	reasons, il le albano de all'approvision, foi permanent registration.
Fees to be	1. (i) The various fees charged for provisional and permanent
charged-23	registration, renewal, late application, duplicate certificate, change of
	ownership, management or name o establishment is prescribed in
	SG5 Annexe under Section 14 (I) read with Section 19 Section 20
	(2), Section 22; Section 24, Section 35 of the Act.
	(ii) Clinical Establishments owned, controlled and managed by
	the Government (Central, State or local authority) or Department of
	Government, shall be exempt from payment of fees for registration.
	(iii) The fees prescribed for various categories of Clinical
	Establishments may be revised by the State Council through a
	notification issued by the State Government
	(iv) The fee shall be paid by cash, demand draft drawn / online
	transaction in favour of the Registration Authority concerned as
	specified under Section 14 (I) and Section 30 of the Act.
	specified under section 1 + (1) and section 50 of the rict.
The fees collected by	1. (i) The Accounts shall be maintained as per the Financial Code
the District	rules and shall be audited by engaging a qualified Chartered
Registering	Accountant. The annual Audit reports shall be submitted to the
Authority concerned	concerned State Council.
Lumonty concerned	

for registration of the	(ii) In the event of any change of ownership or management, the
Clinical	
	establishment shall intimate to the District Registration in writing
Establishments shall	within one month of such change along with the fee prescribed in
be deposited in a	SG5 Annexe for issue of a revised certificate of Provisional or
nationalized bank	Permanent registration, as the case maybe, incorporating the changes
account opened by	and on surrendering the old certificate under Section 20 (2) and
the State Council in	Section 30 of the Act.
the name of "Society	(iii) In the event of certificate of registration (Provisional or
for Health Safety &	Permanent) being lost or destroyed, the owner shall apply to the
Regulation, HP" and	District Registration Authority to issue a duplicate certificate upon
shall be utilized by	payment of the fee prescribed under rule (b) SG6 Annexe and the
the State Council for	provisional certificate shall be marked "Duplicate" as per SG6
the activities	Annexe under Section 19 and Section 30 of the Act.
connected with the	
implementation of	
the provisions of the	
Act-24	
Renewal of	1. (i) The Clinical Establishment shall apply for renewal of
Registration-25	provisional registration thirty days before the expiry of the validity of
	the certificate of provisional registration. In case the application for
	renewal is not submitted within the stipulated period, the authority
	shall allow for renewal of registration on payment of the renewal
	amount as prescribed in SG5 Annexe and penalty of Rs. 100 per
	month till the date of application for renewal under section 22 of the
	Act.
	(ii) The fee for renewal of registration shall be charged as per the
	rate notified by the State Govt. from time to time and the period after
	which a license is to be renewed shall also be prescribed by the State Govt. through an official notification.
	(iii) The period after which the Clinical Establishments shall
	have to apply for renewal will be prescribed by the State Govt.
	through a notification.
	(iv) For renewal of permanent registration, the clinical
	establishment shall apply three (3) months before expiry of the
	registration period of two (2) years. The renewal will be granted by
	the Authority within 3 months of receipt of the application failing
	which it will be deemed to have been renewed. If the clinical
	establishment does not apply within one month of expiry of

	registration period, the registration will be deemed to have been
	suspended.
	(v) Under Section 30 (4) of the Act the clinical establishment
	shall apply for renewal of permanent registration six months before
	the expiry of the validity of the certificate of permanent registration.
	In case the application for renewal is not submitted within the
	stipulated period, the authority will allow for renewal of registration
	on payment of the renewal amount as prescribed in SG5 Annexe and
	penalty of Rs. 100/- per day till the date of application for renewal is
	accepted.
Desistana ta ha	1. (i) Every District Registration Authority shall within a period of
Registers to be	
maintained,	two years from its establishment, compile, publish and maintain in
furnishing of returns	digital format a register of Clinical Establishments registered by it
and display of	and it shall enter the particulars of the certificate so issued in a
information Registers	register containing particulars as prescribed in CG3 Annexe under
to be maintained-26	Section 37 (1) (2) and Section 38 (1) (2) of the Act.
	(ii) Every District Registration Authority including any other
	authority set up for the registration of Clinical Establishments under
	the law for the time being in force shall supply in digital format to the
	State Council of Clinical Establishments a copy of every entry made
	in the District register of clinical establishments for a particular
	month by the 15^{th} day of the following month in keeping with Section
	37 (2) of the Act.
Display of	1. (i) The District Registering Authority shall, within a period of
Information-27	forty-five days from the grant of provisional registration, mandatorily
	cause to be published in the public domain through two local dailies
	and on the website, which the District Registering Authority will
	launch, the name of the Clinical Establishment, Address, Ownership,
	Name of Person in Charge, System of Medicine offered, Type and
	Nature of Services offered and details of the Medical Staff (Doctors,
	Nurses, etc.) as under Section 16 (2) of the Act
	(ii) The State council could make changes in the nature of
	information to be provided in the Public Domain through a
	notification, except in the case of the mandatory information to be
	provided under Section 16 (2) of the Act.
	(iii) The District Registering Authority shall, cause to be
	published in the public domain through two local dailies and on the

	website, which the District Registering Authority will launch, the
	name of the Clinical establishments which have been granted
	permanent registration, Address, Ownership, Name of Person in
	Charge, System of Medicine offered, Type and Nature of Services
	offered, details of the Medical Staff (Doctors, Nurses, etc) and the
	details and information related to having complied with the minimum
	standards and personnel prescribed for the particular category of
	clinical establishment as under Section 26 of the Act.
	(iv) The District Registration Authority shall cause to be
	displayed the above information in public domain for a period of 30
	days for filing objections before granting permanent registration.
	(v) If any person has any objection to the information published
	regarding the clinical establishment they shall give in writing the
	reasons and evidence of objection or non- compliance to the District
	Registration Authority. The District Registering Authority shall,
	within a period of 15 days cause to be published in the public
	domain the name of the Clinical Establishment whose (Provisional
	or Permanent) registration has expired as under Section 21 and
	Section 30 of the Act.
Information to be	1. (i) The Clinical Establishments shall maintain medical records of
provided by Clinical	
provided by children	
Establishments-28	
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act.
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for submission of information and statistics in the time of emergency or
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for submission of information and statistics in the time of emergency or disaster or epidemic situation.
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for submission of information and statistics in the time of emergency or disaster or epidemic situation. (iii) The government may notify from time to time, the nature of
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for submission of information and statistics in the time of emergency or disaster or epidemic situation.
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for submission of information and statistics in the time of emergency or disaster or epidemic situation. (iii) The government may notify from time to time, the nature of
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for submission of information and statistics in the time of emergency or disaster or epidemic situation. (iii) The government may notify from time to time, the nature of information that needs to be furnished by the Clinical Establishments
Establishments-28	of national programmes and furnish the same to the District Authorities in form of three monthly reports. The minimum medical records to be maintained and nature of information to be provided by the Clinical Establishments are prescribed in CG2 Annexe as per Section 12(1) (iii) of the Act. (ii) Copies of all records and statistics shall be kept with the Clinical Establishment concerned for 3 years or in accordance with any other relevant act in force at the time under Section 12 (1) (iii) of the Act. All clinical establishments shall be responsible for submission of information and statistics in the time of emergency or disaster or epidemic situation. (iii) The government may notify from time to time, the nature of information that needs to be furnished by the Clinical Establishments including other disease notified for this purpose along with the

	establishments shall comply and maintain information and statistics
	in keeping with other applicable Acts and Rules which are in force in
	the country.
Power to Enter-29	1. (i) Entry and search of the Clinical Establishment can be done by
	the District Registering Authority or an officer or team duly
	authorized by it or subject to such general or special orders as may be
	made by the authority, subject to a unanimous decision by all member
	of the District Registration Authority for conduct of such entry and
	search.
	(ii) Such entry and search of clinical establishments can be
	conducted if anyone is carrying on a clinical establishment without
	registration or does not adhere to the prescribed minimum standards
	or has reasonable cause to believe the Clinical Establishment is being
	used for purposes other that it is registered or contravenes any of (tie
	provisions or this Act & Rules, shall at all reasonable times enter and
	inspect any record, register, document, equipment and articles as
	deemed necessary under the provisions of Section 34 of the Act.
	(iii) The inspection team shall normally intimate the
	establishment in writing about the date of visit. The team shall
	examine all portions of the premises used or proposed to be used for
	the clinical establishment and inspect the equipments, furniture and
	other accessories and enquire into the professional qualifications of
	the technical staff employed or to be employed and shall make any
	such other enquires as they consider necessary to verify the
	statements made in the application for registration and grant of
	license. All persons connected with the running of the establishment
	shall be bound to supply full and correct information to the
	inspection team.
	Provided further that surprise inspections may also be
	conducted by the inspection teams from the district or the State.
	(iv) The Officer and / or inspection team so constituted by the
	Registering Authority shall submit a report as per SG7 Annexe
	within a week of the inspection to the District Registration Authority
	with a copy to the State Council.
Penalties &	Penalties
Appeals-29	1. (i) In keeping with the provisions of Section 41 (1) (2) and (3)
	Section 42 (1) (2) and (3) of the Act, whoever carries on a clinical
	section 12 (1) (2) and (3) of the rice, whoever carries on a chinear

	Establishment without registration or whoever willfully disobeys any
	direction, or obstructs any person or authority or withholds any such
	information or provides false information shall be liable for a
	monetary penalty.
	(ii) Whoever carried on a clinical establishment without
	registration, shall, on first contravention be liable to a monetary
	penalty upto fifty thousand rupees, for second contravention, to a
	monetary penalty which may extend to two lakh rupees and for any
	subsequent contravention to penalty which may extend to five lakh
	rupees.
	(iii) Whoever knowingly serves in a Clinical Establishment which
	is not duly registered under this Act, shall be liable to a monetary
	penalty which may extend to twenty five thousand rupees.
The penalty fees	Appeals
collected by the	1. (i) In keeping with Section 36, 41 (4) (5) (6) and (7) and Section
District Registering	42 (4) (5) (6) and (7), any person or Clinical Establishment, if
Authority concerned	aggrieved by the decision of the Authority under Sections 29 and 34
shall be deposited in	of the Act, may file an appeal to the State Council within thirty (30)
a nationalized bank	days from the date of receipt of such order along with prescribed
account opened by	fees as indicated in SG 6 Annexe.
the State Council in	(ii) After receipt of the appeal, the State Council shall fix the time
the name of "Society	and date for hearing and inform the same to the appellant and others
Health Safety &	concerned by a registered letter giving at least 15 days time for
Regulation, HP" and	hearing of the case.
shall be utilized by	(iii) The appellant may represent by himself or authorized person
the State Council for	or a Legal practitioner and submit the relevant documentary material
the activities	if any in support of the appeal.
connected with the	(iv) The State Council shall hear all the concerned, receive the
Implementation of	relevant oral/documentary evidence submitted by them, consider the
the provisions of the	appeal and communicate its decision preferably within (90) days
Act at State level as	from the date of filing the Appeal
well as district level-	(v) If the State Council considers that an interim order is
.30	necessary in the matter, it may pass such order, pending final disposal
	of the appeal. The decision of State Council shall be final and
	binding.
	(vi) If no appeal is filed against the decision of the Registering
	Authority in the prescribed period (i.e.) within (30) days from the
	date of receipt of the order, the orders of the Authority shall be final.
	-

(vii) The appeal fees collected by the authorities shall be			
deposited by the District Registering Authority concerned in a			
nationalized bank account opened by the State Council in the name of			
"Society Health Safety & Regulation, HP" and shall be utilized by the			
State Council for the activities connected with the implementation of			
the provisions of the Act.			

By Order

Ali R.Rizvi) Principal Secretary (Health) to the Government of Himachal Pradesh

Copy forwarded to:-

- 1. The Joint Secretary, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Govt. of India, Nirman Bhawan, New Delhi-110108.
- 2. The Registrar, Hon, ble High Court, Himachal Pradesh, Shimla-1.
- 3. All Deputy Commissioner in HP.
- 4. All District and Session Judges in HP.
- 5. All DGs/SPs of Police in HP.
- 6. All Chief Medical Officers/Medical Superintendent in HP.
- 7. The Director of Health Services, HP, Shimla-9.
- 8. The Director, Medical Education and Research, HP, Shimla-9.
- 9. The Director, Dental Health Services, HP, Shimla-9.
- 10. The Director, Health Safety and Regulation, HP, Shimla-9.
- 11. The Principal, IGMC,Shimla-1/HP Govt. Dental College and Hospital,Shimla-1/Dr.RPGMC, kangra at Tanda/HP.
- 12. The Controller, HP Printing and Stationery, Department, Shimla-5 with a request to publish this notification in HP Rajpatra(Extra-Ordinary) immediately and supply a copy of the same to this department for a record .
- 13. Guard file .

Additional Secretary (Health) to the Government of Himachal Pradesh

SG1 Form

Application Form for Provisional Registration of Clinical Establishments

(Under Section 14 of the Clinical Establishment Act, 2010)

<i>1</i> . Name of the Establishment		
2 Address:		
Village/Town/City:	Block:	
District:	State:	Pin code:
Tel No (with STD code):	Mobile:	Email ID:
Website (if any):		
3. Name of Owner: Address:		
Village/Town/City:	Block:	
District:	State:	Pin Code:
Tel No (with STD Code):	Mobile:	Email ID:
4. Name of the Person In-charge: Qualification(s):		
Registration No.:		
Name of Centre/State Council with	whom registered:	
Tel No (with STD Code):	Mobile:	Email ID:
5. Ownership <u>a) Government/Public Sector</u>		
 b) <u>Private Sector</u> Individual Proprietorship _ R 		 Local government: bify): Registered Company Any other (please specify):
6. Systems of Medicine offered: (ple Ayurveda Allopathy Homeopathy Naturopathy Sowa-Rigpa	Unani Unani	cable) Siddha J Voga
7. Type of Clinical Services: General Single Specia please specify		Super Specialty Any other,
8. Type of Clinical Establishment (p a) Inpatient Outpatien specify	nt Laboratory	
b) i) Hospital Nursing Home Community Health Centre	 Maternity Home Any other (please spectrum) 	Sanitation Primary Health Cent

ii)	Number of Beds inpatients						
iii)	Outpatients:						
	Single practitioner Dispensary Polyclinic D	Dental Clinic					
	Physiotherapy/Occupational Therapy Clinic Dialysis Centr	e					
	Day Care CentreSub-CentreAny other (please specify):						
iv) La	aboratory						
	athology Haematology Biochemistry Microbiology Genetics	Any other (please					
v) Im	aging Centre:						
□ x	Ray Electro Cardio Graph (ECG) Ultrasound CT Scan						
Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) Any other (please specify):							
9. Pa	ayment options for Registration Fees:						
	Online payment Demand Draft Postal Order	Cash					
	Any other (please specify):						
Detai	unt (in Rs): ils: sipt No						

□ I hereby declare that the statements made above are correct and true to the best of my knowledge. I shall abide by all the provisions of the Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2010 and the rules made there under. I shall intimate to the District Registering Authority any change in the particulars given above.

Place: Date: Signature of the Owner/Person In-charge (Name_____)



SG2 Annexe

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

REGISTRATION OF CLINICAL ESTABLISHMENT

The application in Form _____ for Grant / Renewal of Provisional / Permanent registration of the Clinical Establishment submitted by ______ (Name and address of Owner) has been received by the District Registration Authority on _____ (date) and found to be

Complete

Or

Incomplete

This acknowledgement does not confer any rights on the applicant for grant or renewal of registration.

Signature and Designation of Registration Authority or authorized person in the Office of the Appropriate Authority.

SEAL

Designation of the Issuing Authority (Computer Generated)

Place & Date: (Computer Generated)



SG 3 Annexe

PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE FOR REGISTRATION OF CLINICAL ESTABLISHMENT

Provisional registration No: (Computer Generated) Date of issue: (Cotnwrter Generated) Valid up to: {Computer Generated]

- 1. Name of the Clinical Establishment: _____
- 2. Address:
- 3. Owner of the Clinical Establishment:
- 4. Name of Person in Charge: _____

Is hereby provisionally registered under the provisions of Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act 2010 and the Rules made there under.

This authorization is subject to the conditions as specified in the rules in force under the Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act 2010 and the Rules made there under.

Designation of the Issuing Authority (Computer Generated)

Place & Date: (Computer Generated)

District Registration Authority Address:

Phone number in case of Grievances



SG 4 Annexe

PERMANENT CERTIFICATE FOR REGISTRATION OF CLINICAL ESTABLISHMENT

Permanent registration No: (Computer Generated) Date of fssue: (Computer Generated) Valid up to: (Computer Generated)

- 1. Name of the Clinical Establishment:
- 2. Address:
- 3. Owner of the Clinical Establishment: _____
- 4. Name of Person in Charge: _____

is hereby permanently registered under the provisions of 'Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act 2010 and the Rules made there under.

This authorization is subject to the conditions as specified in the rules in force under the Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act 2010 and the Rules made there under.

> Designation of the Issuing Authority (Computer Generated) Place & Date: (Computer Generated)

District Registration Authority Address:

Phone number in case of Grievances

SG 5 Annexe Fees to be Charged

Description	Urb	Urban		Rural	
	Provisional	Permanent	Provisional	Permanent	
Out Patient Care	500		500		
In Patient Care	1500		1000		
Testing & Diagnostic	2500		1500		

Other Fees

- For Renewal fee will be same as registration fee (Provisional / Permanent) ٠
- For Late Application the amount would be double of the registration fee (Provisional / Permanent) ٠
- ٠
- For Duplicate Certificate the amount would be Rs. 200 For change of ownership, management or name of establishment would be Rs 1000/-٠
- For any appeal the amount would be Rs. 100 •

* If a laboratory or diagnostic center is a part of a establishment providing out patient / Inpatient care no separate registration is required. However, fee as applicable above would have to be paid.



SG 6 Annexe

DUPLICATE

CERTIFICATE FOR CLINICAL ESTABLISHMENT

Permanent registration No: (Computer Generated) Date of Issue: (Computer Generated) Valid up to: (Computer Generated)

- 1. Name of the Clinical Establishment: _____
- 2. Address:
- 3. Owner of the Clinical Establishment: _____
- 4. Name of Person in Charge: _____

is hereby permanently registered under the provisions of 'Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act 2010 and the Rules made there under.

This authorization is subject to the conditions as specified in the rules in force under the Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act 2010 and the Rules made there under.

Designation of the Issuing Authority (ComputerGenerated) Place & Date: (Computer Generated)

District Registration Authority Address:

Phone number in case of Grievances

SG 7 Annexe

Suggested Format for Submission of Inspection Report

Number of visits made with dates

Names and details of members of the inspection team

Name of clinical establishment visited

Address and contact details of clinical establishment visited

Process followed for inspection (e.g. kindly outline who was met with, what records were examined, etc) $_{\rm v}$

Salient Observations / Findings Conclusions

Specific Recommendations:

- (1) To the Clinical Establishment
- (2) To the District Registering Authority

*In case of lack of consensus amongst members of the inspection team, the same may be kindly indicated

Signature (of all members of the inspection team)

Date Place